
Office of the State Treasurer 
Legislative Building, P.O. Box 40200 • Olympia, Washington 98504-0200 • (360) 902-9000 

TTY CALL 711 • FAX (360) 902-9045 • Home Page http://www.tre.wa.gov 
 

 
State of Washington 
STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE 

PUBLIC DEPOSIT PROTECTION COMMISSION 

 
November 13, 2018 at 1:00 PM 

 
Office of the State Treasurer 

Legislative Building, Room 230 
Olympia, Washington 

 
PURSUANT TO STATUTORY PROVISIONS, YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that the State Finance 
Committee and the Public Deposit Protection Commission will hold a Special Meeting at the Office of 
the State Treasurer, Legislative Building, Second Floor, Room 230, Olympia, Washington at 1:00 P.M., 
on the 13th day of November, 2018 to consider the following:  
 
I. STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

1. Approval of minutes of the July 9, 2018 State Finance Committee meeting. 
 

2. Resolution No. 1217 amends and restates Resolution No. 1196; providing for the issuance of State 
of Washington Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax General Obligation Bonds in the maximum principal 
amount of $631,341,000 for the purpose of providing funds to pay and reimburse state 
expenditures for various transportation projects identified in the Bond Act; providing for certain 
terms and covenants of the bonds; providing for certain other provisions safeguarding the payment 
of the principal thereof and interest thereon; and authorizing and directing the sale of said bonds 
in one or more sales.  Resolution No. 1217 also authorizes the State Treasurer to adopt bond sale 
resolutions. 
 

3. Resolution No. 1218 relating to the proposed issuance and sale by FYI Properties of a series of 
refunding bonds for the purpose of refinancing the FYI Properties’ Lease Revenue Bonds, 2009 
(State of Washington DIS Project). 
 

4. Resolution No. 1219 approving a four-year extension of the agreement for fiscal agency services 
with U.S. Bank National Association. 
 

5. Informational Item Market and bond sales update. 
 

DUANE A. DAVIDSON, Chairman 
State Treasurer 

JAY R. INSLEE 
Governor 

CYRUS HABIB 
Lieutenant Governor 

 



 

 
 
II. PUBLIC DEPOSIT PROTECTION COMMISSION 
 

1. Approval of minutes of the June 1, 2018 Public Deposit Protection Commission meeting. 
 
2. Informational Item Letters of authorization issued by the Chair authorizing approval or termination 

requests of financial institutions for public depositary status in accordance with Resolution 2010–
4 dated May 25, 2010. 
 

3. Informational Item Letters of resolution issued by the Chair authorizing requests to approve, 
rescind, or extend out-of-state and alien bank accounts in accordance with Resolution 2005–7 dated 
August 16, 2005. 

 
4. Resolution 2018-2 Commission’s consideration of re-delegation of authority to the State 

Treasurer to authorize and rescind out-of-state and alien bank accounts requested by state and 
local government entities and higher education facilities. Supersedes Resolution 2005-7. 
 

5. Resolution 2018-3 Commission’s consideration of re-delegation of authority to the State 
Treasurer to approve public depositary status to eligible financial institutions and to terminate 
financial institutions status as a public depositary. Supersedes Resolution 2010-4. 

 
6. Resolution 2018-4 Commission’s consideration of re-delegation of authority to the State 

Treasurer to approve eligible trustees and terminate status if trustee becomes ineligible. 
Supersedes Resolution 2012-2. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you are a person with a disability and require an accommodation for attendance, please contact the Office 
of the State Treasurer, (360) 902-9000, 24 hours prior to the meeting date. 



State Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 
Olympia, Washington 

July 9, 2018 
2:50 pm 

 
The State Finance Committee met in a special meeting after notice duly given to the public. 
 
Present:   Duane Davidson, State Treasurer, Chair 
  Jay Inslee, Governor 
 Cyrus Habib, Lt. Governor (via phone) 
 
Also Present:   Jason Richter, Office of the State Treasurer 
 Rusty Fallis, Office of the Attorney General 
 Shawn Myers, Office of the State Treasurer  
 Catherine Mele-Hetter, Office of the State Treasurer (via phone) 
 Libby Hollingshead, Office of the Lt. Governor (via phone) 
 Scott Merriman, Office of Financial Management 
 Theresa Whitmarsh, Washington State Investment Board 
 Svein Braseth, Office of the State Treasurer 
 Brenda Snyder, Office of the State Treasurer 
   
Chair Davidson called the meeting to order at 2:56 pm.  Chair Davidson stated for the record that 
all three members were present.      
 
Item 1: Approval of Minutes 
 
Chair Davidson introduced minutes from the State Finance Committee Meeting held on April 11, 
2018 at 11:30 am for approval.  There were no corrections.  Minutes were accepted as approved.   
 
Item 2: Resolution 1212—Confirming the Reappointment of Executive Director of the 
Washington State Investment Board 
 
Chair Davidson introduced Resolution 1212, which confirms the reappointment of Ms. Theresa 
Whitmarsh as the Executive Director of the Washington State Investment Board for another 
three-year term.   
 
Approval of the resolution was motioned by Governor Inslee and seconded by Lt. Governor 
Habib.  Discussion followed with remarks of appreciation for Ms. Whitmarsh’s work. The 
motion was adopted unanimously. 
 
Treasurer Davidson adjourned the meeting at 2:58 pm.   
   



STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 
 
 
 
By        

Duane A. Davidson 
State Treasurer and Chairman 

 
 
 
By        

Jay Inslee 
Governor and Member 

 
 
 
By        

Cyrus Habib 
Lieutenant Governor and Member 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Jason P. Richter,  
Deputy State Treasurer and Secretary 
 

 

 
 
 



Office of the State Treasurer 
Legislative Building, P.O. Box 40200 • Olympia, Washington 98504-0200 • (360) 902-9000 

TTY CALL 711 • FAX (360) 902-9045 • Home Page http://www.tre.wa.gov 
 

 
State of Washington 
STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
November 13, 2018 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: The Honorable Duane A. Davidson 
 The Honorable Jay R. Inslee 
 The Honorable Cyrus Habib 
 
FROM: Jason P. Richter 
 Deputy State Treasurer 
 
RE: Proposed Resolution No. 1217 amends and restates Resolution No. 1196, authorizing the 

issuance and sale of State of Washington Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax General Obligation Bonds.  
 
Resolution Purpose.  Proposed Resolution No. 1217 amends and restates Resolution No. 1196, providing 
for the issuance of Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax General Obligation Bonds (“Bonds”) of the State, in the 
maximum principal amount of $631,341,000 for the purpose of providing funds to pay and reimburse 
State expenditures for various transportation projects identified in the Bond Act; providing for certain 
terms and covenants of the bonds; providing for certain other provisions safeguarding the payment of the 
principal thereof and interest thereon; and authorizing and directing the sale of said bonds in one or more 
sales.  Resolution No. 1217 also authorizes the State Treasurer to adopt bond sale resolutions.   
 
Background.  Resolution No. 1196, which was approved by the State Finance Committee August 7, 2017, 
provided for the issuance of the Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax General Obligation Bonds of the State in the 
maximum principal amount of $390,258,000 for the purpose of providing funding for various 
transportation capital projects throughout the State, as authorized by the 2017-19 Transportation Budget 
(Chapter 313, Laws of 2017, effective May 16, 2017).  
 
Subsequent to the Committee’s adoption of Resolution No. 1196, the Legislature enacted the 2018 
Supplemental Transportation Budget (Chapter 297, Laws of 2018, effective March 27, 2018), increasing the 
2017-19 appropriations to be funded by bonds.   
 
Now with the 2018 Supplemental Transportation Budget enacted, Resolution No. 1217 amends and 
restates Resolution No. 1196 to provide for the issuance of Bonds for appropriations for the 2017-19 
biennium. 
 
The Bonds will be used to fund various transportation capital projects throughout the State as authorized 
by the 2017-19 Transportation Budget.  Examples of projects funded in part by bond proceeds for the 
2017-19 Biennium are attached. 
 

DUANE A. DAVIDSON, Chairman 
State Treasurer 

JAY R. INSLEE 
Governor 

CYRUS HABIB 
Lieutenant Governor 

 

 



 
 

2 
 

 
The issuance is expected to be allocated to the bond authorizations as shown in the table below:  
 

 
 
 
Issuance is currently planned on a semi-annual schedule.  As of November 13, 2018, $306,400,000 of the 
authorized amount has been issued, with $324,941,000 remaining unissued, as shown in the table below. 
 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 
• Counsel and Advisors.   
 

Bond Counsel:  William Tonkin, Foster Pepper PLLC 
Financial Advisor:  Chia-Jung Yang, Montague DeRose and Associates LLC 
    Robert Shelley, Piper Jaffray 
 
  

Bonds
Authorized Issued Unissued Preliminary

Chapter and Laws (Bond Authorizations) 6/30/2017 6/30/2017 6/30/2017 Allocation
Ch.  321 -- Laws of 1998............................................... 1,148,740,000   1,075,306,712   73,433,288         73,433,000      
Ch.  147 -- Laws of 2003............................................... 1,852,260,000   1,581,753,877   270,506,123       68,239,000      
Ch.  315 -- Laws of 2005............................................... 4,680,835,000   2,928,323,336   1,752,511,664    489,669,000    

           Total................................................... 7,681,835,000   5,585,383,925   2,096,451,075    631,341,000    

Account 
Number Account Name

Preliminary 
Allocation

Issued as of 
November 13, 2018

Remaining 
Unissued

108 Motor Vehicle Account $73,433,000 $0 $73,433,000
550 Transportation 2003 (Nickel) Account 68,239,000 55,670,000 12,569,000
09H Transportation Partnership Account 489,669,000 250,730,000 238,939,000

TOTAL $631,341,000 $306,400,000 $324,941,000



 
Washington State Department of Transportation July 25, 2017 
Examples of Projects for the 2017-19 Bond Appropriation 
 
 

 
 

Western Washington 
 

Alaskan Way Viaduct: The Alaskan Way Viaduct, an elevated section of State Route 99 in 
Seattle, was built in the 1950s. The elevated highway was damaged during the region’s 2001 
Nisqually earthquake and studies indicate that it may collapse if another major earthquake 
occurs. The structure is being replaced with a two-mile-long bored tunnel and other 
improvements along the SR 99 corridor. After the SR 99 tunnel opens, the viaduct will be 
demolished and the City of Seattle will build a new waterfront Alaskan Way surface street 
linking the tunnel’s south end with the waterfront and downtown. 
 
Tacoma/Pierce County High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV): This section of I-5 is experiencing 
congestion during peak hours and is part of the Pierce County Core HOV program. WSDOT is 
reconstructing the eastbound interchange at I-5 and SR 16. This includes replacing the bridges 
over Nalley Valley, constructing freeway connections, reconstructing all of the ramp roadways 
and structures, and prepares for HOV lanes on I-5 and SR 16. This project will also construct a 
new northbound I-5 bridge across the Puyallup River that will be used for both northbound and 
southbound traffic in the interim.  It will reconstruct the I-5/SR 167 interchange by widening the 
East Bay Street Bridges and reconstructing all on and off ramps except for the southbound off 
ramp to SR 167 and Portland Avenue.  The I-5/Portland Avenue Bridge will be widened and the 
north side ramps will be reconstructed.  I-5 will be widened and a northbound HOV lane will be 
constructed from Portland Avenue to the Port of Tacoma Interchange.  When complete, 
congestion will be reduced and motorist safety enhanced.   
 

Eastern Washington 
 

I-90/Snoqualmie Pass East: The section of I-90 between Hyak and Lake Keechelus Dam 
experiences congestion due to increasing traffic volumes and closures for avalanche control.  By 
adding lanes to this section and realigning the roadway, the project will alleviate congestion, 
minimize closures due to avalanche control, increase safety, and will provide a smoother ride due 
to new pavement designed to last 50 years when all improvements are completed.  
 
US 395/NSC BNSF Railway Structures/Realignment: This project removes a chokepoint for 
continuation of the North Spokane Corridor south of the current terminus at the Freya Street 
Interchange by relocating the BNSF mainline, switching and spur tracks, construction of two 
freeway structures over the BNSF tracks, and two pedestrian/bicycle structures.  The project will 
also extend the existing bicycle pedestrian trail.  This project is partially funded by a USDOT 
TIGER grant.       
 
 
 



EXECUTION VERSION 
 

 
STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
OLYMPIA, WASHINGTON 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 1217 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE STATE 
OF WASHINGTON AMENDING AND RESTATING RESOLUTION 
NO. 1196; PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF MOTOR VEHICLE FUEL 
TAX GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF THE STATE, IN THE 
MAXIMUM PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $631,341,000 FOR THE PURPOSE 
OF PROVIDING FUNDS TO PAY AND REIMBURSE STATE 
EXPENDITURES FOR VARIOUS TRANSPORTATION PROJECTS 
IDENTIFIED IN THE BOND ACT; PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN TERMS 
AND COVENANTS OF THE BONDS; PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN OTHER 
PROVISIONS SAFEGUARDING THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL 
THEREOF AND INTEREST THEREON; AND AUTHORIZING AND 
DIRECTING THE SALE OF SAID BONDS IN ONE OR MORE SALES. 

 
 
 
 

ADOPTED:  NOVEMBER 13, 2018 
  



Table of Contents 
 
Section 1. Definitions................................................................................................................. 2 
Section 2. Authorization and Purpose of the Bonds .................................................................. 4 
Section 3. Description of the Bonds .......................................................................................... 4 
Section 4. Place, Manner and Medium of Payment ................................................................... 5 
Section 5. Redemption; Purchase; Notice; Cancellation ........................................................... 5 
Section 6. Security for Bonds .................................................................................................... 6 
Section 7. Deposits Into and Payments from Bond Fund and Specific Covenants ................... 8 
Section 8. Enforcement of Rights .............................................................................................. 8 
Section 9. Form of Bonds .......................................................................................................... 9 
Section 10. Execution of Bonds ................................................................................................... 9 
Section 11. Authentication and Delivery of Bonds by Bond Registrar ....................................... 9 
Section 12. Bond Registrar; Registration of Bonds ..................................................................... 9 
Section 13. Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds ........................................................... 11 
Section 14. Defeasance .............................................................................................................. 12 
Section 15. Sale of the Bonds .................................................................................................... 12 
Section 16. Official Statement ................................................................................................... 13 
Section 17. Delivery of Bonds ................................................................................................... 13 
Section 18. Disposition of Bond Proceeds ................................................................................. 13 
Section 19. Tax Covenants ........................................................................................................ 14 
Section 20. Undertaking to Provide Ongoing Disclosure .......................................................... 14 
Section 21. Alternate Use of Bond Proceeds ............................................................................. 17 
Section 22. Contract; Severability ............................................................................................. 17 
Section 23. Filing of Resolution ................................................................................................ 17 
Section 24. Ratification .............................................................................................................. 17 
Section 25. Immediate Effect ..................................................................................................... 17 
 
Exhibit 1 - Schedule of Bond Acts, Chapters and Laws and Bond Funds 
 
  



1 
53150475.3 

STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

OLYMPIA, WASHINGTON 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1217 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE STATE 
OF WASHINGTON AMENDING AND RESTATING RESOLUTION 
NO. 1196; PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF MOTOR VEHICLE FUEL 
TAX GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF THE STATE, IN THE 
MAXIMUM PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $631,341,000 FOR THE PURPOSE 
OF PROVIDING FUNDS TO PAY AND REIMBURSE STATE 
EXPENDITURES FOR VARIOUS TRANSPORTATION PROJECTS 
IDENTIFIED IN THE BOND ACT; PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN TERMS 
AND COVENANTS OF THE BONDS; PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN OTHER 
PROVISIONS SAFEGUARDING THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL 
THEREOF AND INTEREST THEREON; AND AUTHORIZING AND 
DIRECTING THE SALE OF SAID BONDS IN ONE OR MORE SALES. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Washington (the “State”) has authorized the 
issuance by the State Finance Committee (the “Committee”) of certain motor vehicle fuel tax 
general obligation bonds pursuant to bond authorizing legislation more particularly described in 
Exhibit 1 of this resolution (the “Bond Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the Committee by Resolution No. 1196 adopted on August 7, 2017, 
authorized the issuance of certain motor vehicle fuel tax general obligation bonds in the 
maximum principal amount of $390,258,000 for the purpose of providing funds to pay and 
reimburse State expenditures for various transportation projects identified in the Bond Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State subsequent to the Committee’s adoption of 
Resolution No. 1196 enacted Chapter 297, Laws of 2018, the 2018 Supplemental Transportation 
Budget, effective March 27, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, the Committee, at the request of the State Department of Transportation, 
desires by the adoption of this resolution to amend and restate Resolution No. 1196 to increase 
the maximum principal amount of motor vehicle fuel tax general obligation bonds authorized to 
be issued in order to provide funding for additional appropriations for transportation projects 
contained in the 2018 Supplemental Transportation Budget, and to include the additional bond 
authorizing legislation contained in the Bond Act under which such bonds are to be issued; and 

WHEREAS, the Committee is authorized by chapter 39.42 RCW to provide for the 
issuance and sale of such bonds; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
ACTING FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON, as follows: 



2 
53150475.3 

Section 1.  Definitions.  Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined in this 
section shall, for all purposes of this resolution and of any resolution supplemental hereto, have 
the meanings specified; words importing the singular number include the plural number and vice 
versa: 

Authorized Motor Vehicle Bonds means the aggregate principal amount of the motor 
vehicle fuel tax general obligation bonds authorized by the Bond Act. 

Beneficial Owner means any person that has or shares the power, directly or indirectly, 
to make investment decisions concerning ownership of any Bonds (including persons holding 
Bonds through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries). 

Bond Act means, collectively, one or more of the Chapters and Laws set forth in 
Exhibit 1 attached hereto and specified in a Bond Sale Resolution as the particular authorization 
being used for a Series of Bonds. 

Bond Fund means the highway bond retirement account created in the State Treasury. 

Bond Register means the registration books on which are maintained the names and 
addresses of the Registered Owners of the Bonds. 

Bond Registrar means the Fiscal Agent. 

Bond Sale Resolution means a supplemental resolution hereafter adopted by the 
Committee, or by the State Treasurer on behalf of the Committee as provided in this resolution, 
that establishes, among other items, the aggregate principal amount, principal amounts per 
maturity, maturity dates, interest rates, redemption provisions and other terms of a Series of the 
Bonds that are dependent upon the final pricing of such Bonds, and specifies the Bond Act for 
that Series of Bonds, as such resolution may be amended or supplemented from time to time.  
Wherever in this resolution reference is made to the adoption of a Bond Sale Resolution by the 
Committee or to the establishment of any matter relating to the sale of the Bonds by the 
Committee pursuant to a Bond Sale Resolution, that reference shall include adoption of a Bond 
Sale Resolution by the State Treasurer on behalf of the Committee as provided in this resolution 
and shall authorize the establishment of such matters relating to the sale of the Bonds by the 
State Treasurer pursuant to such a Bond Sale Resolution adopted by the State Treasurer. 

Bonds means any or all of the motor vehicle fuel tax general obligation bonds of the 
State, the sale and issuance of which are provided for in this resolution. 

Chair means the Chair of the Committee. 

Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time, together 
with all applicable rulings and regulations promulgated thereunder. 

Commission means the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

Committee means the State Finance Committee of the State, or any successor thereof. 



3 
53150475.3 

Compound Accreted Value means the amount payable at maturity with respect to any 
deferred interest Bond equal to the original principal amount thereof and interest thereon, 
accrued from its date and compounded semiannually on each interest payment date at a rate per 
annum established by a Bond Sale Resolution. 

Deputy State Treasurer means the Deputy State Treasurer, or Acting Deputy State 
Treasurer, and Secretary of the Committee. 

DTC means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, a limited purpose 
trust company organized under the laws of the State of New York, as depository for each Series 
of Bonds pursuant to Section 12 hereof. 

Federal Credit Payments means amounts which the State is entitled to receive as a 
subsidy or tax credit payable by the United States Treasury to the State in respect of interest on 
any Bonds issued as Tax-Advantaged Bonds. 

Fiscal Agent means the fiscal agency or fiscal agencies of the State as appointed from 
time to time by the Committee pursuant to chapter 43.80 RCW. 

Issue Date means the date on which a Series of Bonds is delivered to the initial purchaser 
or purchasers thereof upon payment in full of the purchase price therefor. 

Laws means the statutes of the State. 

Legislature means the Legislature of the State. 

Letter of Representations means the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations from the 
State to DTC. 

MSRB means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

Project Account means the Motor Vehicle Account, the Transportation 2003 Account 
and the Transportation Partnership Account, each in the Motor Vehicle Fund of the State, as 
applicable. 

Registered Owner means, with respect to each Series of the Bonds, the person named as 
the registered owner of a particular Bond in the Bond Register.  For so long as the Bonds are 
held in book-entry only form, DTC shall be deemed to be the sole Registered Owner. 

Rule means the Commission’s Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities and Exchange Act of 
1934, as the same may be amended from time to time. 

Series shall refer to each issue of Bonds issued in the future and identified by a separate 
series designation. 

State means the State of Washington. 



4 
53150475.3 

Tax-Advantaged Bonds means any Bonds that are designated by the State as Bonds with 
respect to which the State is eligible to receive Federal Credit Payments or the holders of which 
are eligible to receive a federal tax credit under any federal subsidy or credit program available 
under the Code. 

Tax-Exempt Bonds means any Bond the interest on which is excludable from gross 
income of the Beneficial Owner for purposes of federal income tax. 

Term Bonds means all Bonds that are identified as term bonds in the Bond Sale 
Resolutions, the payment of which will be made from mandatory sinking fund deposits into the 
Bond Fund. 

Transportation Projects means those projects authorized under the Bond Act for which 
the State Department of Transportation has requested financing through the issuance of a Series 
of the Bonds.  

Underwriters means the underwriters identified in the Bond Sale Resolutions. 

Section 2.  Authorization and Purpose of the Bonds.  For the purpose of providing funds 
to finance the Transportation Projects, and all costs incidental thereto, and for the payment of the 
expenses incurred in connection with the sale and issuance of the Bonds, the Committee hereby 
authorizes, on behalf of the State, the sale and issuance of the Bonds in one or more sales and 
one or more Series, all as provided in the Bond Act. 

The Committee covenants on behalf of the State that no Series of Bonds will be offered 
for sale without both a prior request by the State Department of Transportation for the sale and 
prior appropriation by the Legislature of the net proceeds of sale of such Bonds and that, as of 
the Issue Date of each Series of the Bonds, the aggregate principal amount of Authorized Motor 
Vehicle Bonds that the Committee shall have sold and issued, including the Bonds, will not 
exceed the total principal amount authorized by the Bond Act to be issued. 

Section 3.  Description of the Bonds.  The Bonds shall be designated “Motor Vehicle 
Fuel Tax General Obligation Bonds,” with such additional Series designation or other 
designations established by a Bond Sale Resolution; and shall be in an aggregate principal 
amount of not to exceed $631,341,000.  Each Series of Bonds shall be dated as of their Issue 
Date; shall be issued in fully registered form; shall be in the denomination (or, as to deferred 
interest Bonds, a Compound Accreted Value at maturity) of $5,000 each or any integral multiple 
thereof within a single maturity; shall be numbered separately in such manner and with any 
additional designation as the Bond Registrar deems necessary for purposes of identification; and 
shall mature on the date or dates in each of the years and in the principal amounts to be 
established by a Bond Sale Resolution.  The Bond Sale Resolution shall designate whether all or 
a portion of the Bonds of a Series will be issued as serial bonds or Term Bonds. 

Current interest Bonds of a Series shall bear interest from their Issue Date or from the 
most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, 
whichever is later, payable at such rate or rates on such interest payment dates as are established 
by the Bond Sale Resolution, to the maturity or earlier redemption thereof.  Deferred interest 
Bonds shall bear interest from their date, payable at maturity, at such rate or rates compounded 



5 
53150475.3 

semiannually to produce the approximate yields to maturity as the Committee hereafter shall 
establish by a Bond Sale Resolution.  If any Bond shall have been duly presented for payment 
and not paid on such applicable date, then interest shall continue to accrue thereafter at the 
interest rate stated on such Bond until it is paid.   

Nothing in this resolution shall preclude the Committee from providing by separate 
resolution for the issuance and sale of a portion of the Bonds as a Series of variable interest rate 
Bonds. 

Section 4.  Place, Manner and Medium of Payment.  The principal of, premium, if any, 
and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America.  
Interest on the Bonds shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year and twelve 30-day 
months.  If the Bonds of any Series are in fully immobilized form and held by DTC, such 
payments of principal and interest on such Series shall be made as provided in the operational 
arrangements of DTC as referred to in the Letter of Representations.   

If the Bonds of any Series are no longer in fully immobilized form, interest on the Bonds 
shall be paid by check or draft mailed (or by wire transfer to a Registered Owner of such Bonds 
(if agreed to by the Committee)) to the Registered Owners of the Bonds of such Series at the 
addresses for such Registered Owners appearing on the Bond Register on the 15th day of the 
month preceding the interest payment date.  Principal and premium, if any, of the Bonds shall be 
payable upon presentation and surrender of such Bonds by the Registered Owners to the Bond 
Registrar. 

Section 5.  Redemption; Purchase; Notice; Cancellation. 

(a) Optional and Mandatory Redemption.  The Bond Sale Resolution for a 
Series shall designate which maturities of the Series, if any, are subject to optional and 
mandatory redemption, and shall further provide for the time, manner and price at which such 
Series of Bonds may be redeemed prior to their stated maturities.  As long as the Bonds are held 
in book-entry only form, the selection of Bonds to be redeemed shall be made in accordance with 
the operational arrangements in effect at DTC.  If the Bonds are no longer held in uncertificated 
form, the selection of such Bonds to be redeemed shall be made in a random method determined 
by the Bond Registrar. 

(b) Partial Redemption.  Any Bond in the principal amount of greater than 
$5,000 may be partially redeemed in any integral multiple of $5,000.  If the Bonds are no longer 
held in book-entry only form, then in such event, upon surrender of such Bond to the Bond 
Registrar, a new Bond or Bonds (at the option of the Registered Owner), of the same Series, 
date, maturity and interest rate and in the aggregate principal amount remaining unredeemed, in 
any denomination authorized by this resolution, shall be authenticated and delivered, without 
charge, to the Registered Owner thereof. 

(c) Purchase.  The State hereby reserves the right to purchase any or all of the 
Bonds offered for sale to the State at any time, at any price. 

(d) Effect of Optional Redemption/Purchase.  If the State redeems under the 
optional redemption provisions, purchases in the open market or defeases Term Bonds of a 



6 
53150475.3 

Series, the par amount of the Term Bonds so redeemed, purchased or defeased (irrespective of 
their actual redemption or purchase prices) shall be credited against one or more scheduled 
mandatory redemption amounts for those Term Bonds.  The State Treasurer shall determine the 
manner in which the credit is to be allocated and shall notify the Bond Registrar in writing of its 
allocation at least 60 days prior to the earliest mandatory redemption date for that maturity of 
Term Bonds for which notice of redemption has not already been given. 

(e) Notice of Redemption.  While the Bonds are held in book-entry only form, 
notice of redemption shall be given only in accordance with the operational arrangements then in 
effect at DTC, and the Bond Registrar shall not be required to give any other notice of 
redemption.  If the Bonds cease to be in book-entry only form, the State shall cause notice of any 
such intended redemption (which redemption shall be conditioned by the Bond Registrar on the 
receipt of sufficient funds for redemption) to be given by the Bond Registrar not less than 20 nor 
more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption by first-class mail, postage prepaid, to 
the Registered Owner of each Bond to be redeemed at the address appearing on the Bond 
Register on the day the notice is mailed, and the requirements of this sentence shall be deemed to 
be complied with when notice is mailed as herein provided, whether or not it is actually received 
by the Registered Owner.  Additional notice of redemption may be sent at least 35 days before 
the redemption date to the MSRB and to such persons  and with such additional information as 
the Deputy State Treasurer shall deem appropriate, but such mailings shall not be a condition 
precedent to the redemption of such Bonds. 

(f) Rescission of Optional Redemption Notice.  In the case of an optional 
redemption, the notice of redemption may state that the State retains the right to rescind the 
redemption notice and the related optional redemption of Bonds by giving a notice of rescission 
to the affected Registered Owners at any time prior to the scheduled optional redemption date.  
Any notice of optional redemption that is so rescinded shall be of no effect, and the Bonds for 
which the notice of optional redemption has been given shall remain outstanding. 

(g) Effect of Redemption.  If the State shall have set aside on the date fixed 
for redemption sufficient money for the payment of Bonds called for redemption on the date 
fixed for redemption, the Bonds so called shall cease to accrue interest after such redemption 
date, and all such Bonds shall be deemed not to be outstanding hereunder for any purpose, except 
that the Registered Owners thereof shall be entitled to receive payment of the redemption price 
and accrued interest to the redemption date from the money set aside for such purpose.  

(h) Cancellation of Bonds.  All Bonds purchased or redeemed under this 
Section 5 shall be canceled. 

Section 6.  Security for Bonds. 

(a) Pledge of Full Faith and Credit.  The Bonds are general obligations of the 
State.  The State, acting by and through the Committee, pledges its full faith and credit to the 
payment of the principal of and the interest on the Bonds and unconditionally promises to pay 
that principal and interest as the same shall become due. 



7 
53150475.3 

(b) Pledge of Excise Tax on Motor Vehicle and Special Fuels.  The principal 
and interest on the Bonds shall be first payable in the manner provided by the Bond Act from the 
proceeds of the state excise taxes on motor vehicle and special fuels imposed by Chapter 82.38 
RCW.  On behalf of the State and as a part of the contract of sale of the Bonds, the proceeds of 
such excise taxes are pledged to the payment of any Bonds and the interest thereon, and in the 
Bond Act the Legislature has agreed to continue to impose those excise taxes on motor vehicle 
and special fuels in amounts sufficient to pay, when due, the principal and interest on all bonds 
issued under the authority of the Bond Act. 

  Any funds required to pay the Bonds allocated to the 1998 Ch. 321 Bond 
Act (RCW 47.10.843-.848), or the interest thereon when due, shall be taken from that portion of 
the Motor Vehicle Fund which results from the imposition of excise taxes on motor vehicle and 
special fuels and which are, or may be, appropriated to the Department of Transportation for 
state highway purposes, and shall never constitute a charge against any allocations of any other 
such funds in the Motor Vehicle Fund to the State, counties, cities, and towns unless and until the 
amount arising from the excise taxes on motor vehicle and special fuels and distributed to the 
State in the Motor Vehicle Fund proves insufficient to meet the requirements for Bond retirement 
or interest on any such Bonds.   

  Any funds required to pay the Bonds allocated to the 2003 Ch. 147 Bond 
Act (RCW 47.10.861-.866), or the interest thereon when due, shall be taken from that portion of 
the Motor Vehicle Fund which results from the imposition of excise taxes on motor vehicle and 
special fuels and which is distributed to the transportation 2003 account (nickel account) in the 
Motor Vehicle Fund, and shall never constitute a charge against any other allocations of any 
other such funds in the Motor Vehicle Fund to the State, counties, cities, and towns unless and 
until the amount arising from the excise taxes on motor vehicle and special fuels and distributed 
to the transportation 2003 account (nickel account) proves insufficient to meet the requirements 
for Bond retirement or interest on any such Bonds. 

  Any funds required to pay the Bonds allocated to the 2005 Ch. 315 Bond 
Act (RCW 47.10.873-.878), or the interest thereon when due, shall be taken from that portion of 
the Motor Vehicle Fund which results from the imposition of excise taxes on motor vehicle and 
special fuels and which is distributed to the transportation partnership account in the Motor 
Vehicle Fund, and shall never constitute a charge against any other allocations of any other such 
funds in the Motor Vehicle Fund to the State, counties, cities, and towns unless and until the 
amount arising from the excise taxes on motor vehicle and special fuels and distributed to the 
transportation partnership account proves insufficient to meet the requirements for Bond 
retirement or interest on any such Bonds. 

 The charge on such excise taxes for payment of the Bonds shall be equal to the 
charge on such excise taxes for the payment of the principal of and interest on any other general 
obligation bonds of the State issued under authority of legislation authorized by the 45th Session 
of the Legislature (1979-1980) or thereafter and which pledged (on an equal basis) motor vehicle 
and special fuel taxes for the payment of the principal thereof and interest thereon. 

(c) Additional Means for Payment of Bonds.  The Legislature may provide 
additional means for raising money for the payment of the principal of and interest on the 



8 
53150475.3 

Authorized Motor Vehicle Bonds, and the Bond Act shall not be deemed to provide an exclusive 
method for such payment. 

Section 7.  Deposits Into and Payments from Bond Fund and Specific Covenants. 

(a) Repayment Procedure.  On or before June 30 of each year, the Committee 
shall certify to the State Treasurer the amount required to pay principal of and interest on the 
Bonds in the next fiscal year; provided, however, that the percentage of receipts required in 
connection with the payments due prior to the start of the next fiscal year shall be estimated 
within 30 days following the date of sale of the Bonds.  The State Treasurer, subject to the 
applicable provisions of the Bond Act, shall withdraw revenues from the Motor Vehicle Fund 
and deposit in the Bond Fund on or before each interest or principal and interest payment date 
such amounts as are required to pay debt service on such Bonds.   

 Any amounts received from the Federal government as credit payments with 
respect to Bonds issued as Tax-Advantaged Bonds shall be deposited in the Bond Fund. 

 Any surplus money in the Bond Fund may, in the discretion of the Committee, be 
used to redeem any bonds payable from the Bond Fund (subject to applicable bond covenants) 
prior to scheduled maturities or may remain in the Bond Fund to reduce requirements upon the 
fuel tax portion of the Motor Vehicle Fund. 

Interest earnings on money in the Bond Fund shall remain in the Bond Fund and shall be 
used and applied to pay the principal and interest on the Bonds or other bonds payable from the 
Bond Fund. 

(b) Accurate Records.  The State shall maintain accurate records showing all 
collections of motor vehicle and special fuel excise taxes levied pursuant to Chapters 82.36 and 
82.38 RCW and all payments made into and out of the Bond Fund, and such records shall be 
made available for inspection at any reasonable time by the holders of any of the Authorized 
Motor Vehicle Bonds. 

(c) Transfers of Funds.  On or before the date such payments are due from 
time to time, the State Treasurer shall pay to the Bond Registrar, from money in the Bond Fund, 
sums sufficient to pay the principal of and interest coming due on Bonds then outstanding.  For 
purposes of this Section 7, principal of the outstanding Bonds shall be considered as coming due 
on their respective dates of maturity or, in the case of Term Bonds, on the dates and in the 
amounts scheduled for their mandatory redemption.  The amount required to be deposited into 
the Bond Fund and paid to the Bond Registrar, for purposes of effecting the payment of the 
Bonds or the mandatory redemption of Term Bonds, is subject to reduction arising from the 
State’s purchase or optional redemption of the Bonds in the manner described in Section 5 of this 
resolution. 

Section 8.  Enforcement of Rights.  The Registered Owner of each Bond, or a trustee for 
the Registered Owners of any of the Bonds, may by mandamus or other appropriate proceeding 
require the transfer and payment of money as directed in the Bond Act and this resolution. 



9 
53150475.3 

Section 9.  Form of Bonds.  The Bonds shall be prepared in a form consistent with the 
provisions of this resolution, the applicable Bond Sale Resolution and state law. 

Section 10.  Execution of Bonds.  The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the State by 
the facsimile or manual signatures of the Governor and the State Treasurer.  A facsimile of the 
official seal of the State shall be imprinted or otherwise reproduced on the Bonds, and the 
facsimile is adopted as the seal of the State for the Bonds.  If any officer who shall have signed 
or whose facsimile signature appears on any Bond shall cease to be that officer before that Bond 
shall have been actually authenticated or issued, that Bond, nevertheless, may be authenticated 
and issued and, upon such authentication and issue, shall be as binding upon the State as though 
that person had not ceased to be that officer.  Any Bond may be executed on behalf of the State 
by an officer who, on the actual date of execution of the Bond, shall be the proper officer of the 
State, although on the date of the Bond that officer might not have held that office. 

Section 11.  Authentication and Delivery of Bonds by Bond Registrar.  The Bond 
Registrar is authorized and directed, on behalf of the State, to authenticate and deliver the Bonds 
initially issued or transferred or exchanged in accordance with the provisions of the Bonds and 
this resolution.  Only those Bonds bearing a Certificate of Authentication in the following form, 
manually executed by an authorized representative of the Bond Registrar, shall be valid or 
obligatory for any purpose or entitled to the benefits of this resolution:  “Certificate of 
Authentication.  This Bond is one of the State of Washington [Name of Series], dated ______, 
20__, described in the Bond Resolution.”  The Certificate of Authentication shall be conclusive 
evidence that the Bonds so authenticated have been duly executed, authenticated and delivered 
and are entitled to the benefits of this resolution.  The Bond Registrar shall be responsible for its 
representations contained in the Certificate of Authentication on the Bonds. 

Section 12.  Bond Registrar; Registration of Bonds. 

(a) Registration Covenant.  The Bonds shall be issued only in registered form 
as to both principal and interest and shall be recorded on the Bond Register.  The State covenants 
that, until all Bonds have been surrendered and canceled, it will maintain or cause to be 
maintained a system of recording the ownership of each Bond that complies with the provisions 
of Section 149(a) of the Code. 

(b) Bond Registrar.  The Bond Registrar shall keep, or cause to be kept, the 
Bond Register at its principal corporate trust office, which shall be open to inspection by the 
State at all times during regular business hours.  The Bond Register shall contain the name and 
mailing address of the Registered Owner of each Bond and the principal amount and number of 
each of the Bonds held by each Registered Owner. 

 The Bond Registrar is authorized, on behalf of the State, to authenticate and 
deliver Bonds transferred or exchanged in accordance with the provisions of the Bonds and this 
resolution, to serve as the State’s paying agent for the Bonds and to carry out all of the Bond 
Registrar’s powers and duties under this resolution. 

 The Bond Registrar shall be responsible for its representations contained in the 
Bond Registrar’s Certificate of Authentication on the Bonds.  The Bond Registrar may become 



10 
53150475.3 

either a Registered or Beneficial Owner of Bonds with the same rights it would have if it were 
not the Bond Registrar and, to the extent permitted by law, may act as depository for and permit 
any of its officers or directors to act as members of, or in any other capacity with respect to, any 
committee formed to protect the rights of Beneficial Owners. 

(c) Registered Ownership.  The State and the Bond Registrar, each in its 
discretion, may deem and treat the Registered Owner of each Bond as the absolute owner thereof 
for all purposes (except as provided in Section 20 of this resolution), and neither the State nor the 
Bond Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.  Payment of any such Bond shall 
be made only as described in Section 4 of this resolution, but the registration may be transferred 
as herein provided.  All payments made as described in Section 4 shall be valid and shall satisfy 
and discharge the liability of the State upon the Bond to the extent of the amount or amounts so 
paid. 

(d) DTC Acceptance/Letter of Representations.  To induce DTC to accept 
each Series of Bonds as eligible for deposit at DTC, the State has executed and delivered to DTC 
the Letter of Representations. 

 Neither the State nor the Bond Registrar will have any responsibility or obligation 
to DTC participants or the persons for whom they act as nominees (or any successor depository) 
with respect to each Series of Bonds in respect of the accuracy of any records maintained by 
DTC (or any successor depository) or any DTC participant, the payment by DTC (or any 
successor depository) or any DTC participant of any amount in respect of the principal of or 
interest on any Series of Bonds, any notice which is permitted or required to be given to 
Registered Owners under this resolution or a Bond Sale Resolution (except such notices as shall 
be required to be given by the State to the Bond Registrar or to DTC (or any successor 
depository), or any consent given or other action taken by DTC (or any successor depository) as 
the Registered Owner.  For so long as any Series of Bonds are held in fully immobilized form 
hereunder, DTC or its successor depository shall be deemed to be the Registered Owner of such 
Series for all purposes hereunder and under the respective Bond Sale Resolution, and all 
reference herein to the Registered Owners shall mean DTC ( or any successor depository) or its 
nominee and shall not mean the owners of any beneficial interest in such Series of Bonds. 

(e) Use of Depository. 

  (i) Unless otherwise specified in a Bond Sale Resolution, the Bonds 
of each Series authorized herein shall be registered initially in the name of “Cede & Co.,” as 
nominee of DTC, with all Bonds maturing on the same maturity date and bearing the same 
interest rate in the form of a single certificate.  Registered ownership of such immobilized 
Bonds, or any portions thereof, may not thereafter be transferred except (A) to any successor of 
DTC or its nominee, provided that any such successor shall be qualified under any applicable 
laws to provide the service proposed to be provided by it; (B) to any substitute depository 
appointed by the Committee pursuant to subsection (ii) below or such substitute depository’s 
successor; or (C) to any person as provided in subsection (iv) below. 

  (ii) Upon the resignation of DTC or its successor (or any substitute 
depository or its successor) from its functions as depository or a determination by the Committee 



11 
53150475.3 

to discontinue the system of book-entry transfers through DTC or its successor (or any substitute 
depository or its successor), the Committee may hereafter appoint a substitute depository.  Any 
such substitute depository shall be qualified under any applicable laws to provide the services 
proposed to be provided by it. 

  (iii) In the case of any transfer pursuant to clause (A) or (B) of 
subsection (i) above, the Bond Registrar shall, upon receipt of all outstanding Bonds of a Series, 
together with a written request on behalf of the Committee, issue a single new Bond for each 
maturity of the Series of the immobilized Bonds then Outstanding, registered in the name of such 
successor or such substitute depository, or their nominees, as the case may be, all as specified in 
such written request of the Committee. 

  (iv) In the event that (A) DTC or its successor (or substitute depository 
or its successor) resigns from its functions as depository, and no substitute depository can be 
obtained, or (B) the Committee determines that it is in the best interest of the Beneficial Owners 
of any Series of Bonds that owners of Bonds of that Series be able to obtain those bonds in the 
form of Bond certificates, the ownership of that Series of Bonds may then be transferred to any 
person or entity as herein provided, and shall no longer be held in fully immobilized form.  The 
Committee shall deliver a written request to the Bond Registrar, together with a supply of 
definitive Bonds for that Series to issue Bonds as herein provided in any authorized 
denomination.  Upon receipt by the Bond Registrar of all then outstanding Bonds of that Series 
together with a written request on behalf of the Committee to the Bond Registrar, new Bonds of 
the same Series shall be issued in the appropriate denominations and registered in the names of 
those persons as are identified in such written request 

(f) Registration of Transfer of Ownership or Exchange; Change in 
Denominations.  The transfer of any Bond may be registered and Bonds may be exchanged, but 
no transfer of any Bond shall be valid unless such Bond is surrendered to the Bond Registrar, 
with the assignment form appearing on such Bond duly executed by the Registered Owner or its 
duly authorized agent in a manner satisfactory to the Bond Registrar.  Upon surrender of a Bond 
for transfer or exchange, the Bond Registrar shall cancel the surrendered Bond and shall 
authenticate and deliver, without charge to the Registered Owner or transferee, a new Bond or 
Bonds (at the option of the new Registered Owner) of the same Series, date, maturity and interest 
rate and for the same aggregate principal amount of the surrendered Bond, in any authorized 
denomination, naming as Registered Owner the person or persons listed as the assignee on the 
assignment form appearing on the surrendered Bond, in exchange for the surrendered and 
canceled Bond.  Any Bond may be surrendered to the Bond Registrar and exchanged, without 
charge, for an equal aggregate principal amount of Bonds, as appropriate, of the same Series, 
date, maturity and interest rate, in any authorized denomination.  The Bond Registrar shall not be 
obligated to transfer or exchange any Bond during the 15 days preceding any interest payment, 
principal payment or redemption date. 

Section 13.  Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds.  If any Bond becomes 
mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Bond Registrar shall, upon request of the State, 
authenticate and deliver a new Bond, as appropriate, of the same Series, date, interest rate and 
maturity and of like tenor and effect in substitution therefor, all in accordance with Law.  If the 
lost, stolen or destroyed Bond has matured, the State, at its option, may pay the same without its 



12 
53150475.3 

surrender, in accordance with Law.  However, no substitution or payment shall be made unless 
and until the applicant shall furnish (a) evidence satisfactory to the Bond Registrar of the 
destruction or loss of the original Bond and of its ownership and (b) such additional security, 
indemnity or evidence as may be required by the Committee.  No substitute Bond shall be 
furnished until the applicant shall reimburse the State and the Bond Registrar for their respective 
expenses in the furnishing thereof.  Each substitute Bond shall be equally and proportionately 
entitled to the security of this resolution with all other Bond or Bonds of the same Series, as 
appropriate, then outstanding.  The State shall not be required to treat both the original Bond and 
any duplicate Bond as being outstanding for the purpose of determining the principal amount of 
Bonds which may be issued and outstanding hereunder, but both the original and the duplicate 
Bond shall be treated as one and the same. 

Section 14.  Defeasance.  If money and/or “Government Obligations” (as defined in 
chapter 39.53 RCW, as now in existence or hereafter amended) maturing at such time(s) and 
bearing such interest to be earned thereon (without any reinvestment thereof) as will provide a 
series of payments which shall be sufficient together with any money initially deposited, to 
provide for the payment of the principal of and interest on all or a designated portion of a Series 
of Bonds when due in accordance with their respective terms are set aside in a special fund 
(hereinafter called the “trust account”) to effect such payment, and are pledged irrevocably in 
accordance with a refunding or defeasance plan adopted by the State for the purpose of effecting 
such payment, then no further payments need be made into the Bond Fund for the payment of 
principal of and interest on such Bonds, the Registered Owners thereof shall cease to be entitled 
to any lien, benefit or security of this resolution, except the right to receive payment of the 
principal of and interest on such Bonds when due in accordance with their respective terms from 
the money and the principal and interest proceeds on the Government Obligations set aside in the 
trust account, and such Bonds shall no longer be deemed to be outstanding hereunder.   

Section 15.  Sale of the Bonds. 

(a) Methods of Sale of Bonds.  The Deputy State Treasurer is hereby 
authorized to determine, for each Series of Bonds, whether such Bonds will be sold 
competitively at public sale or whether such Series will be sold by means of a negotiated sale to 
one or more Underwriters. 

If the Deputy State Treasurer determines to sell Bonds at a public sale, he shall: (i) 
establish the date of the public sale; (ii) establish the criteria by which the successful bidder will 
be determined; (iii) determine the amount, form and method of delivery of a good faith deposit to 
the State; (iv) cause notice of the public sale to be given; and (v) provide for such other matters 
pertaining to the public sale as he deems necessary or desirable. 

If the Deputy State Treasurer determines to sell Bonds by means of a negotiated sale, he 
is authorized to solicit proposals for the selection of firms to serve as Underwriters for such 
Bonds and to negotiate the terms of a bond purchase contract for the sale of those Bonds. 

(b) Adoption of Bond Sale Resolutions.  The State Treasurer is authorized, on 
behalf of the Committee, to adopt a Bond Sale Resolution to approve the sale of a Series of the 
Bonds within the aggregate total amount of Bonds authorized by this resolution.   



13 
53150475.3 

 Provisions of the Bond Sale Resolution may include, without limitation, 
(i) provisions for the acceptance of offers to purchase the Bonds and provisions for the sale and 
delivery of the Bonds to the purchasers; (ii) provisions for the date or dates, price or prices, 
aggregate principal amount of the Series, principal amounts per maturity, delivery dates, and 
interest rate or rates (or mechanisms for determining the interest rate or rates); (iii) redemption 
provisions; and (iv) other terms and conditions required by or otherwise not inconsistent with the 
provisions of this resolution. 

(c) Elections to Treat Bonds as Tax-Advantaged Bonds.  If the State Treasurer 
determines that it is beneficial to the State for a Series of Bonds to be sold and issued as Tax-
Advantaged Bonds, the Bond Sale Resolution shall include those elections and other provisions 
as may be required under the Code for the State to designate that Series of Bonds as Tax-
Advantaged Bonds and may authorize other actions as are necessary or appropriate for the State 
to receive from the United States Treasury the applicable Federal Credit Payments or for the 
holders to receive the applicable tax credit in respect of those Bonds. 

Section 16.  Official Statement.  To allow the initial Underwriters of the Bonds of each 
Series to comply with Section (b)(1) of the Rule, the Committee hereby authorizes the State 
Treasurer or Deputy State Treasurer to execute a certificate “deeming final,” as of its date, the 
preliminary official statement to be prepared by the State in connection with the offering of each 
Series of Bonds.  A preliminary official statement may be deemed final even though it omits 
information as to offering prices, interest rates, selling compensation, aggregate principal 
amounts, principal amount per maturity, maturity dates, options of redemption, delivery date, 
ratings and other terms of the Bonds that are dependent on such matters. 

The Committee authorizes and approves the preparation, execution by the State Treasurer 
or Deputy State Treasurer and delivery to the Underwriter of a final official statement for the 
Bonds of each Series, in the form of the preliminary official statement, with such modifications 
and amendments thereto as shall be deemed necessary or desirable by the State Treasurer or 
Deputy State Treasurer.  The Committee authorizes and approves the distribution by the 
Underwriters of the preliminary official statement to potential purchasers of the Bonds and the 
final official statement to purchasers of the Bonds. 

Section 17.  Delivery of Bonds.  The proper State officials are authorized and directed to 
execute all documents and to do everything necessary, without unreasonable delay after each 
Bond Sale Resolution is adopted, for (a) the preparation and delivery of transcripts of 
proceedings pertaining to the Series of Bonds sold thereunder, and (b) the preparation, 
authentication and delivery of such Bonds, in definitive form, to the initial Underwriters thereof. 

Each Series of Bonds will be prepared at the State’s expense and will be delivered to the 
initial Underwriters thereof in accordance with its offer to purchase the Bonds of such Series, 
with the approving legal opinion of Bond Counsel regarding each such Series. 

Section 18.  Disposition of Bond Proceeds.  The proceeds from the sale of each Series of 
Bonds, together with all other money which the Committee may direct the State Treasurer to 
deposit therein, shall be deposited to the credit of the applicable Project Account and shall be 



14 
53150475.3 

used exclusively to pay or reimburse prior expenditures made for costs of carrying out the 
purposes specified in the Bond Act, including the payment of costs of issuance. 

The State reserves the right to amend the Bond Act and this resolution so as to provide 
different or additional purposes for which the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds may be used.   

Section 19.  Tax Covenants.  The Committee on behalf of the State covenants that the 
State will not take or permit to be taken on its behalf any action that would adversely affect the 
exemption from federal income taxation of the interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds and will take 
or require to be taken such acts as may be permitted by law and as may from time to time be 
required under applicable law to continue the exemption from federal income taxation of the 
interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the State 
will comply with Section 148 of the Code, will spend the proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds 
with due diligence to completion of the purposes specified herein, will pay any required rebate or 
penalty (if permitted in lieu of loss of tax exemption) to the United States under Section 148(f) of 
the Code, and will not invest or make other use of the proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds or of 
its other money or take such other intentional acts at any time during the term of the Tax-Exempt 
Bonds that will cause such Tax-Exempt Bonds to be arbitrage bonds within the meaning of 
Section 148(a) of the Code.  The State Treasurer may establish such accounts and/or subaccounts 
as the State Treasurer deems necessary to comply with this section. 

The Committee on behalf of the State also covenants that the State will not take or permit 
to be taken on its behalf any action that would adversely affect the entitlement of the State to 
receive from the United States Treasury the applicable Federal Credit Payments in respect of  
Tax-Advantaged Bonds, or the entitlement of the Beneficial Owners to receive tax credits in 
respect of Tax-Advantaged Bonds.   

Section 20.  Undertaking to Provide Ongoing Disclosure. 

(a) Contract/Undertaking.  This section constitutes the State’s written 
undertaking for the benefit of the owners of each Series of the Bonds in order to assist the 
Underwriters in complying with Section (b)(5) of the Rule. 

(b) Financial Statements/Operating Data.   

(i) Annual Disclosure Report.  The State covenants and agrees that 
not later than seven months after the end of each fiscal year (the “Submission Date”), the State 
shall provide or cause to be provided, either directly or through a designated agent, to the MSRB, 
in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB, accompanied by identifying information as 
prescribed by the MSRB, an annual report (the “Annual Disclosure Report”) that is consistent 
with the requirements of part (ii) of this subsection (b).  The Annual Disclosure Report may be 
submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a package and may include 
by reference other information as provided in part (ii) of this subsection (b); provided that any 
Audited Financial Statements (hereinafter defined) may be submitted separately from the balance 
of the Annual Disclosure Report and later than the Submission Date if such Audited Financial 
Statements are not available by the Submission Date.  If the State’s fiscal year changes, the State 
shall give notice of such change in the same manner as notice is to be given of the occurrence of 



15 
53150475.3 

an event listed in subsection (c) hereof, and if for any fiscal year the State does not furnish an 
Annual Disclosure Report to the MSRB by the Submission Date, the State shall send a notice to 
the MSRB. 

(ii) Content of Annual Disclosure Reports.  The State’s Annual 
Disclosure Report shall contain or include by reference the following: 

  (A) Audited Financial Statements.  Audited financial 
statements of the State prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, as the same 
shall be amended from time to time, except that if any audited financial statements are 
not available by the Submission Date, the Annual Disclosure Report shall contain 
unaudited financial statements in a format similar to the audited financial statements most 
recently prepared for the State, and the State’s audited financial statements shall be filed 
in the same manner as the Annual Disclosure Report when and if they become available; 

  (B) Financial and Operating Data.  Historical financial and 
operating data for the State of the type included in the official statement for such Series; 
and 

  (C) Amendments.  A narrative explanation of any reasons for 
any amendments to this undertaking made during the previous fiscal year and the effect 
of such amendments on the Annual Disclosure Report being provided. 

Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to documents available 
to the public on the internet website of the MSRB or filed with the Commission.  The State shall 
identify clearly each document so included by reference. 

If not provided as part of the Annual Disclosure Report discussed above, the State shall 
provide the State’s audited annual financial statements prepared in accordance with regulations 
prescribed by the State auditor when and if available to the MSRB. 

(c) Listed Events.  The State agrees to provide or cause to be provided, in a 
timely manner not in excess of ten business days after the occurrence of the event, to the MSRB 
notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the respective Series of 
Bonds (which may be amended if the Rule is amended prior to the Issue Date of any Series of 
Bonds):  (1) principal and interest payment delinquencies; (2) non-payment related defaults, if 
material; (3) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 
(4) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; (5) substitution of 
credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; (6) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by 
the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notice of 
Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701 – TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect 
to the tax status of the Bonds; (7) modifications to rights of owners, if material; (8) Bond calls 
(other than scheduled sinking fund redemptions of Term Bonds), if material, and tender offers; 
(9) defeasances; (10) release, substitution or sale of property securing the repayment of the 
respective Series of Bonds, if material; (11) rating changes; (12) bankruptcy, insolvency, 
receivership or similar event of the State, as such “Bankruptcy Events” are defined in the Rule; 



16 
53150475.3 

(13) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the State or the sale 
of all or substantially all of the assets of the State other than in the ordinary course of business, 
the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive 
agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; and 
(14) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if 
material.  For any Series of Bonds issued on or after February 27, 2019, such list of listed events 
will include (15) incurrence of a financial obligation of the obligated person, if material, or 
agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a 
financial obligation of the obligated person, any of which affect security holders, if material; and 
(16) default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other similar 
events under the terms of a financial obligation of the obligated person, any of which reflect 
financial difficulties, as such “financial obligations” are defined in the Rule.   

 Solely for purposes of information, but without intending to modify this 
agreement, with respect to the notice regarding property securing the repayment of the Bonds, 
the State may state in its preliminary and final official statements for any Series that there is no 
property securing the repayment of such Bonds nor, if applicable, are there any debt service 
reserves or credit enhancement or liquidity provider.   

(d) Notice Upon Failure to Provide Financial Data.  The State agrees to 
provide or cause to be provided, in a timely manner, to the MSRB, notice of its failure to provide 
the annual financial information described in subsection (b) above on or prior to the date set forth 
in subsection (b) above. 

(e) Termination/Modification.  The State’s obligations to provide annual 
financial information and notices of listed events with respect to each Series of Bonds shall 
terminate upon the legal defeasance (if notice of such defeasance is given as provided above) or 
payment in full of all of the Bonds of such Series.  This section, or any provision hereof, shall be 
null and void if the State (1) obtains an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the 
effect that those portions of the Rule which require this section, or any such provision, have been 
repealed retroactively or otherwise do not apply to the Bonds; and (2) notifies, in a timely 
manner, the MSRB of such opinion and the cancellation of this section.  Notwithstanding any 
other provision of this resolution, the State may amend this section and any provision of this 
section may be waived, with an approving opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the 
effect that such amendment or waiver is permitted by the Rule. 

 In the event of any amendment of or waiver of a provision of this section, the 
State shall describe such amendment in the next Annual Disclosure Report, and shall include, as 
applicable, a narrative explanation of the reason for the amendment or waiver and its impact on 
the type (or in the case of a change of accounting principles, on the presentation) of financial 
information or operating data being presented by the State.  In addition, if the amendment relates 
to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing financial statements, (i) notice of such 
change shall be given in the same manner as for a listed event under subsection (c), and (ii) the 
Annual Disclosure Report for the year in which the change is made should present a comparison 
(in narrative form and also, if feasible, in quantitative form) between the financial statements as 
prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the 
former accounting principles. 



17 
53150475.3 

(f) Owner’s Remedies Under this Section.  The right of the Registered 
Owners or any beneficial owner to enforce the provisions of this section shall be limited to a 
right to obtain specific enforcement of the State’s obligations hereunder, and any failure by the 
State to comply with the provisions of this undertaking shall not be a default with respect to the 
Bonds under this resolution. 

(g) Additional Information.  Nothing in this section shall be deemed to 
prevent the State from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set 
forth in this section or any other means of communication, or including any other information in 
any Annual Disclosure Report or notice of occurrence of a listed event, in addition to that which 
is required by this section.  If the State chooses to include any information in any Annual 
Disclosure Report or notice of the occurrence of a listed event in addition to that specifically 
required by this section, the State shall have no obligation under this resolution to update such 
information or to include it in any future Annual Disclosure Report or notice of occurrence of a 
listed event. 

Section 21.  Alternate Use of Bond Proceeds.  Nothing in this resolution or the Bonds 
shall prevent the State from properly authorizing that the Bond proceeds may be expended for 
purposes other than provided in Section 2 of this resolution. 

Section 22.  Contract; Severability.  The covenants contained in this resolution and in the 
Series of Bonds issued hereunder shall constitute a contract between the State and the Registered 
Owner of each Bond.  If any one or more of the covenants or agreements provided in this 
resolution, to be performed by the State, shall be declared by any court of competent jurisdiction 
after final appeal (if any appeal be taken) to be contrary to law, then the covenant or covenants, 
agreement or agreements, shall be null and void, shall be deemed separable from the remaining 
covenants and agreements in this resolution and shall in no way affect the validity of the other 
provisions of this resolution, the Bonds. 

Section 23.  Filing of Resolution.  The Deputy State Treasurer is directed to file with the 
State Treasurer, pursuant to RCW 39.42.100, a certified copy of this resolution immediately 
upon its adoption. 

Section 24.  Ratification.  All actions heretofore taken by officers or staff of the 
Committee consistent with the terms of this resolution are ratified, approved and confirmed. 

Section 25.  Immediate Effect.   This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
adoption. 



18 
53150475.3 

ADOPTED at an open meeting of the State Finance Committee after notice thereof was 
duly given as required by law, this 13th day of November, 2018. 

STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 
 
 
By    

Duane A. Davidson 
State Treasurer and Chair 

 
 
By    

Jay Inslee 
Governor and Member 

 
 
By   

Cyrus Habib 
Lieutenant Governor and Member 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
Jason P. Richter 
Deputy State Treasurer and Secretary 
  



53150475.3 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

BOND ACTS, CHAPTERS AND LAWS 
 

 
Exhibit 1A -- Authorization Allocation 
 

    Bonds 
Authorized 
(6/30/2017) 

 
Issued 

(6/30/2017) 

 
Unissued 

(6/30/2017) 

 
Preliminary 
Allocation Chapter and Laws (Bond Authorizations)     

Ch. 321 -- Laws of 1998................................... $ 1,148,740,000 $ 1,075,306,712 $ 73,433,288 $ 73,433,000 
Ch. 147 -- Laws of 2003...................................  1,852,260,000  1,581,753,877  270,506,123  68,239,000 
Ch. 315 -- Laws of 2005...................................  4,680,835,000  2,928,323,336  1,752,511,664  489,669,000 
           

    Total............................................... $ 7,681,835,000 $ 5,585,383,925 $ 2,096,451,075 $ 631,341,000 

 
 



53150475.3 

Exhibit 1B --  Chapter and Laws with Fund Detail 
 

      Debt   
      Service Capital  
     OST Fund Fund  

Bonds Ch Laws Sess Sec Autho Number* Number* Capital Fund Name 
         

MVFT GO 321 1998 1R (16) 464 303 108 Motor Vehicle Account 

MVFT GO 147 2003 1R (1) 799 303 550 Transportation 2003 Account 

MVFT GO 315 2005 1R (1) 841 303 09H Transportation Partnership Account 

 
 
* Fund Definitions           

108 Motor Vehicle Account 
550 Transportation 2003 Account  
09H Transportation Partnership Account  
303 Highway Bond Retirement Account  

 
 
 



 

CERTIFICATE 
 

I, Jason P. Richter, the duly appointed, qualified and acting Secretary of the State Finance 
Committee of the State of Washington, certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 
Resolution No. 1217 of such Committee, adopted at an open public meeting thereof held on this 
13th day of November, 2018, after notice of such meeting was duly and regularly given as 
required by law, and that such resolution has been entered in the records of such Committee held 
on such date and remains in effect as of this date. 

DATED:  November 13, 2018. 

 
        

Jason P. Richter, Secretary 
State Finance Committee 

 



Office of the State Treasurer 
Legislative Building, P.O. Box 40200 • Olympia, Washington 98504-0200 • (360) 902-9000 

TTY CALL 711 • FAX (360) 902-9045 • Home Page http://www.tre.wa.gov 
 

 
State of Washington 
STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
November 13, 2018 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: The Honorable Duane A. Davidson 
 The Honorable Jay R. Inslee 
 The Honorable Cyrus Habib 
 
FROM: Jason P. Richter 
 Deputy State Treasurer 
 
RE: Proposed Resolution No. 1218 relating to the proposed issuance and sale by FYI Properties of 

a series of refunding bonds for the purpose of refinancing the FYI Properties’ Lease Revenue 
Bonds, 2009 (State of Washington State DIS Project).  

 
Resolution Purpose.  Proposed Resolution No. 1218 approves FYI Properties and the 2019 Bonds to be 
issued by FYI Properties in accordance with the State Finance Committee's Debt Issuance Policy, and 
subject to the conditions noted in Resolution No. 1218. Resolution No. 1218 also approves the intended 
acceptance of title to the project by the State when the bonds have been repaid. 
 
Background.   In 2009, the Department of Information Services, now Consolidated Technology Services 
(CTS), also known as Washington Technology Services (WaTech), entered into a financing contract for 
the construction and lease-purchase of an office building and data center known as the 1500 Jefferson 
Building, located on the “Wheeler Block” of the Capitol Campus.   
 
FYI Properties and the State originally determined that the most cost-effective method of financing the 
project was by the issuance of 63-20 Bonds. The State Finance Committee approved Resolution No. 1086 
on June 9, 2009, to implement the original plan of finance as authorized by the State Legislature.  The 
State Finance Committee approved the financing and lease-purchase agreement in Resolution No. 1090 
on July 14, 2009. The FYI Properties’ Lease Revenue Bonds, 2009 (the "2009 Bonds") were issued on 
August 13, 2009. 
 
Over the past several months, the Office of the State Treasurer (OST) has approached CTS about the 
potential debt service savings that could be achieved by refunding the 2009 Bonds. To that end, OST has 
provided CTS with various refunding scenarios and estimated potential debt service savings associated 
with each. 
 
In collaboration with OFM and taking into account other factors and costs associated with various 
refunding scenarios, CTS and OFM have ultimately concluded that it is most advantageous to refund the 
2009 Bonds with a new issue of 63-20 bonds (memo attached). 

DUANE A. DAVIDSON, Chairman 
State Treasurer 

JAY R. INSLEE 
Governor 

CYRUS HABIB 
Lieutenant Governor 

 

 



2 
 

 
Estimated Savings.  FYI Properties’ issuance of Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2019 to call and 
redeem the 2009 Bonds maturing on and after July 1, 2019 is expected to significantly lower debt service 
costs and in turn reduce the state's lease payments on this facility. Based on interest rates as of October 
25, 2018, the refunding will produce savings of approximately $40.5 million on a present value basis, or 
$56.5 million on a nominal basis over the life of the bonds. This represents present value savings of 
15.15% of the refunded bonds, and annual debt service savings of $2.8 million. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• Counsel and Advisors.   
 

Bond Counsel:  Cynthia Weed, K&L Gates LLP 
Financial Advisor:  Chia-Jung Yang, Montague DeRose and Associates LLC 
    Robert Shelley, Piper Jaffray 

 



EXECUTION VERSION 

 
STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
OLYMPIA, WASHINGTON 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 1218 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE OF 
THE STATE OF WASHINGTON RELATING TO THE 
PROPOSED ISSUANCE AND SALE BY FYI PROPERTIES OF 
A SERIES OF REFUNDING BONDS FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
REFINANCING THE FYI PROPERTIES’ LEASE REVENUE 
BONDS, 2009 (STATE OF WASHINGTON STATE DIS 
PROJECT). 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to a planning process that began in 2007, the State of Washington, 

acting through the Department of Information Services (the “State”) determined to undertake the 
construction of an office building and data center (including parking facilities) (the “Project”) on 
property located on the “Wheeler Block” on the Capitol Campus in the City of Olympia; and 
 
 WHEREAS, upon review of proposals received for the Project, the State originally 
determined that the most cost-effective method of financing the Project was by the issuance of 
tax-exempt bonds (“Original Plan of Finance”) pursuant to Revenue Ruling 63-20 of the 
U.S. Treasury, as further amended and updated by Revenue Procedure 82-26 of the U.S. Treasury 
(collectively, the “Ruling”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the State Finance Committee adopted Resolution No. 1086 on June 9,  2009, 
to implement the Original Plan of Finance providing for the lease of the land on which the Project 
would be situated by the State to FYI Properties, a Washington nonprofit corporation (“FYI 
Properties”) under the terms of a Ground Lease, dated as of June 29, 2009 (the “Ground Lease”) 
and a Lease Agreement from FYI Properties to the State (as a “financing contract”) authorized by 
the State Legislature in Section 6031(8) of Chapter 328, Laws of 2008, as amended by Section 
6031(8) of Chapter 497, Laws of 2009, executed and effective as of June 29, 2009 (the “Original 
Financing Lease”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, on July 14, 2009, the State Finance Committee adopted Resolution No. 1090, 
approving the issuance by FYI Properties of its Lease Revenue Bonds, 2009 (State of Washington 
DIS Project) (the “2009 Bonds”), approving FYI Properties for the purpose of financing and 
undertaking the Project and approving the acceptance of title to the Project when the 2009 Bonds 
were paid or their payment fully provided for; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Project has been completed and all proceeds of the 2009 Bonds have been 
allocated to Project expenditures, including costs of issuance and capitalized interest; and 
 



 

 -2- 
 

 WHEREAS, on January 25, 2011, the State Finance Committee adopted Guidelines for 
Use of 63-20 Financing Contracts; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the State wishes to lower its rent payments under the Original Financing 
Lease by refinancing the 2009 Bonds; and  
 
 WHEREAS, FYI Properties and the State have determined that the most cost-effective 
method of refinancing the 2009 Bonds is through the issuance of refunding tax-exempt bonds 
pursuant to the Ruling as certified by the Office of Financial Management and Consolidated 
Technology Services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, subject to the conditions set forth in this resolution, the State Finance 
Committee is approving the issuance by FYI Properties (on behalf of the State) of its Lease 
Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2019 (State of Washington DIS Project) (the “2019 Bonds”), the 
proceeds of which together with amounts paid by the State under the Original Financing Lease, 
shall be used to pay and redeem all outstanding 2009 Bonds on June 1, 2019; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the State may not enter into any financing contract for itself if the aggregate 
principal amount payable thereunder is greater than an amount to be established from time to time 
by the State Finance Committee, and the State Finance Committee on April 11, 2018, approved a 
revised Finance Plan for the 2017-2019 Biennium for State Financing Contracts and Certificates 
of Participation therein in a maximum aggregate amount that includes the Original Financing 
Lease, and also approved any refinancing contract entered into for the purpose of achieving interest 
cost savings in accordance with the State Finance Committee’s Debt Issuance Policy; and 
 

WHEREAS, the stated purposes of FYI Properties are inter alia, to assist in the erection 
and maintenance of public buildings and to undertake activities which lessen the burdens of 
government; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project serves these purposes by lessening the burdens of the State by 
providing a cost effective means of financing and refinancing the Project;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON, as follows: 
 

Section 1. Bond Issuance by FYI Properties.  For the purpose of refunding the 
2009 Bonds and paying costs of issuance, the State Finance Committee hereby approves the 
issuance of the 2019 Bonds by FYI Properties in accordance with the State Finance Committee’s 
Debt Issuance Policy.  This approval is subject to the following conditions. 
 

(a) Manner of Sale. 
 

 1. The Deputy State Treasurer shall determine whether the 2019 Bonds will 
be sold competitively at public sale or whether the 2019 Bonds will be sold by means of a 
negotiated sale to one or more underwriters. 
 



 

 -3- 
 

  2. The rating process for the 2019 Bonds shall be managed by the Office of 
State Treasurer in consultation with FYI Properties. 
 
  3. If the Deputy State Treasurer determines to sell the 2019 Bonds at a public 
sale, he shall:  (i) establish the date of the public sale for the 2019 Bonds; (ii) establish the criteria 
by which the successful bidder will be determined; (iii) determine the amount, form and method 
of delivery of a good faith deposit; (iv) cause notice of the public sale to be given; and (v) provide 
for such other matters pertaining to the public sale as deemed necessary or desirable.  If the Deputy 
State Treasurer determines to sell the 2019 Bonds by means of a negotiated sale, he shall determine 
the manner of selection of the underwriter or underwriters and negotiate the terms of a bond 
purchase contract for the sale of the 2019 Bonds. 
 
  4. The preparation of the public offering materials and information (including, 
but not limited to, the preliminary official statement, the official statement and investor 
presentations, if any) shall be managed by the Office of State Treasurer. 
 
  5. The acceptance of a bid for purchase of the 2019 Bonds shall be subject to 
the prior approval of the Deputy State Treasurer. 
 
  6. The date and time of closing and closing conditions for delivery of the 2019 
Bonds shall be as determined by the Deputy State Treasurer in consultation with FYI Properties.  
 

(b) Administrative Matters. 
 
  1. The 2019 Bonds shall be delivered with the approving legal opinion of bond 
counsel acceptable to FYI Properties and the State. 
 
  2. In connection with the issuance of the 2019 Bonds, the State shall enter into 
an amendment of the Original Financing Lease with FYI Properties, including a reduction in its 
financial obligations (“Rent”) as a result of interest cost savings due to the refunding of the 2009 
Bonds (which amendment together with the Original Financing Lease is herein referred to as the 
“Financing Lease”). 
 
  3. U.S. Bank National Association, in its capacity as fiscal agent for the State, 
shall be designated as the trustee for the 2019 Bonds and refunding trustee for the 2009 Bonds (the 
“Trustee”) under the terms of an Indenture of Trust between FYI Properties and the Trustee (the 
“Indenture”) and subject to terms approved by the Deputy State Treasurer.   
 
  4. Agreements for ongoing disclosure under Securities and Exchange 
Commission Rule 15c2-12 with respect to the 2019 Bonds shall be subject to review and approval 
by the Deputy State Treasurer. 
 
  5. The sale and issuance of the 2019 Bonds shall be subject to the further terms 
and conditions set by the Deputy State Treasurer as he deems appropriate.  The 2019 Bonds shall 
not be delivered to the successful bidder or underwriter(s) unless the Deputy State Treasurer has 



 

 -4- 
 

confirmed in writing that the conditions established in and pursuant to this Section 1 have been 
met (or waived) in his sole discretion.   
 

(c) Security for the 2019 Bonds.  The 2019 Bonds shall be limited obligations of 
FYI Properties, payable solely from the security granted to the Trustee under the Indenture (the 
“Trust Estate”).  FYI Properties is a single purpose entity, is not a governmental unit and has no 
taxing power.  FYI Properties has no source of funds available to pay debt service on the 
2019 Bonds other than the Trust Estate, and neither FYI Properties nor the Trustee is obligated to 
use funds from any source other than the Trust Estate to pay debt service on the 2019 Bonds. 

 
The State’s sole obligation is to pay Rent and perform its other obligations as provided in 

the Financing Lease.  The obligation of the State to pay Rent and perform its other obligations 
under the Financing Lease is a limited obligation of the State payable solely from the sources and 
subject to the limitations set forth in the Financing Lease.  The State payments under the 
Financing Lease do not constitute a general obligation of the State and neither the full faith and 
credit nor the taxing power of the State is pledged to the payment of Rent or the performance of 
its other obligations under the Financing Lease.  Payments of Rent by the State are subject to 
appropriation by the Legislature and Executive Order reduction by the Governor.  
A determination by the Legislature not to appropriate or any Executive Order reduction by the 
Governor would not constitute a default under the Indenture or the Financing Lease.  The 
preliminary and final Official Statements for the 2019 Bonds also shall include language to that 
effect.   

 
 Section 2. Approval of Nonprofit Corporation.  For the sole purpose of providing for 
the refunding of the 2009 Bonds and the refinancing of the Project, the State Finance Committee 
approves FYI Properties, the purposes and activities of FYI Properties as described in Section 4.1 
of its Articles of Incorporation, and the 2019 Bonds to be issued by FYI Properties, subject to the 
following additional conditions: 
 

(a) FYI Properties shall at all times operate on a nonprofit basis; 
 

(b) FYI Properties’ income shall in no event inure to the benefit of any private person; 
and 
 

(c) Upon the payment and retirement of the 2019 Bonds and any refunding bonds 
issued by FYI Properties, FYI Properties shall convey all right, title and interest in the Project to 
the State free and clear of any encumbrance or obligation of any kind (other than those created or 
otherwise approved by the State).  The terms of the Financing Lease shall include this commitment 
by FYI Properties. 
 

Section 3. Delivery of Project on Payment of 2019 Bonds.  The State Finance 
Committee, on behalf of the State, approves the acceptance of title to the Project, including any 
additions to the Project, upon tender thereof by FYI Properties when the 2019 Bonds and any 
refunding bonds have been paid or their payment fully provided for. 
 



 

 -5- 
 

ADOPTED by the State Finance Committee of the State of Washington this 13th day of 
November, 2018. 
 

STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 
 
 
 
By   

Duane A. Davidson 
State Treasurer and Chair 

 
 
 
By   

Jay Inslee 
Governor and Member 

 
 
 
By   

Cyrus Habib 
Lieutenant Governor and Member 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Jason P. Richter, 
Deputy State Treasurer and Secretary 



 

 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 

I, Jason P. Richter, the duly appointed, qualified and acting Deputy State Treasurer and 
Secretary of the State Finance Committee of the State of Washington, certify that the foregoing is 
a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 1218 of such Committee, adopted at an open public 
meeting thereof held on this 13th day of November, 2018, after notice of such meeting was duly 
and regularly given as required by law, and that such resolution has been entered in the records of 
such Committee held on such date and remains in effect as of this date. 
 

DATED:  _______________, 2018. 

 
 

  
Jason P. Richter, Deputy State Treasurer 

and Secretary 
 



 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
 

 
 
November 9, 2018 
 
 
RE: Refunding of FYI Properties Lease Revenue Bonds, 2009 
 
 
In 2009, Department of Information Services (DIS) entered into a financing contract for the lease-
purchase of an office building and state data center located at 1500 Jefferson Street SE in Olympia.   
 
At the time of the initial bond issuance, DIS worked in close collaboration with the Office of 
Financial Management (OFM) to determine the most appropriate financing method.  After 
evaluating the state’s Certificate of Participation (COP) program and the issuance of lease revenue 
bonds “on behalf of” a governmental issuer (63-20 Bonds), DIS and OFM agreed that issuance of 
63-20 Bonds was the most appropriate method of financing.  The State Finance Committee 
approved the financing and the non-profit organization (FYI Properties) that issued the bonds with 
Resolutions 1086 and 1090.  The FYI Properties Lease Revenue Bonds, 2009 (the “2009 Bonds”) 
were issued on August 13, 2009. 
 
After agency reorganizations that have occurred since 2009, Consolidated Technology Services 
(CTS), also known as Washington Technology Services (WaTech), is now the landlord of the 
building and responsible for the debt service of the 2009 Bonds. 
 
Over the past several months, the Office of the State Treasurer (OST) approached CTS about 
potential savings in debt service that could be achieved by refunding the 2009 bonds.  To that end, 
OST has provided CTS with various refunding scenarios and the estimated debt service savings 
associated with each. 
 
After reviewing the costs associated with various refunding scenarios and other factors, CTS and 
OFM have concluded that it is most advantageous to refund the 2009 Bonds with a new issue of 63-
20 Bonds.  The proposed refinancing will be presented to the State Finance Committee on 
November 13, 2018.  If approved, it is expected that the refunding of 63-20 Bonds will be issued in 
March of 2019. 
 
 
 
________________________________                            ________________________________ 
 
David Schumacher      Vikki Smith 
Director       Acting Director  
Office of Financial Management    Consolidated Technology Services 
 
 



Office of the State Treasurer 
Legislative Building, P.O. Box 40200 • Olympia, Washington 98504-0200 • (360) 902-9000 

TTY CALL 711 • FAX (360) 902-9045 • Home Page http://www.tre.wa.gov 
 

 
State of Washington 
STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 
November 13, 2018 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: The Honorable Duane A. Davidson 
 The Honorable Jay R. Inslee 
 The Honorable Cyrus Habib 
 
FROM: Jason Richter 
 Deputy State Treasurer 
 
RE:    Proposed Resolution No. 1219 – Extension of Fiscal Agent Agreement 
  
Proposed Resolution No. 1219 provides a four-year extension of the statewide Fiscal Agent Agreement 
with U.S. Bank National Association (U.S. Bank) as recommended by the Office of the State Treasurer 
(OST).  OST reached out to stakeholders to evaluate U.S. Bank’s performance, and respondents were 
overwhelmingly positive. 
 
Pursuant to authority granted in Chapter 43.80 RCW, the State Finance Committee appoints one or more 
fiscal agents for the state to act as fiscal agent for all obligations issued by the state and its political 
subdivisions. 
 
This contrasts with most other states in which fiscal agents are typically engaged separately by each issuer. 
 
By contracting for statewide services, the state has been able to successfully negotiate favorable terms at 
cost effective rates for services that benefit both the state and local governments, as well as the fiscal 
agent.  The contract provides low fees that are predictable over an extended period of time, and offers all 
users online services for billing and financial activity statements. 
 
The state’s management of the statewide fiscal agent agreement enhances communication between the 
state, local governments, and the fiscal agent.  The fiscal agent contacts the state if it encounters issues 
with an issuer that may affect similar entities in the state.  In addition, the state periodically advocates on 
behalf of local governments in resolving problems they may have with the fiscal agent.  Investors also 
have the advantage of knowing which fiscal agent to contact for answers to their questions about debt 
service payments made by Washington issuers. 
 
The current fiscal agent agreement between U.S. Bank and the State of Washington was approved by the 
Committee on September 4, 2014, by Resolution No. 1160.  The original agreement provided an initial 
term of four years that commenced on February 1, 2015 and will end on January 31, 2019, and provides 
an option for the State Finance Committee to extend the term of the agreement for additional periods, each 
not to exceed four years, for a maximum extension of eight years. 

DUANE A. DAVIDSON, Chairman 
State Treasurer 

JAY R. INSLEE 
Governor 

CYRUS HABIB 
Lieutenant Governor 



 

 
The amendment only extends the contract period.  The fees, the fee structure, and the other terms of the 
agreement remain unchanged.  
 
The Office of the State Treasurer recommends the extension of the statewide fiscal agent agreement with 
U.S. Bank National Association for an additional four year period. 
 



 

 

 

 

 

STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE 

OLYMPIA, WASHINGTON 

RESOLUTION NO. 1219 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE STATE 
OF WASHINGTON APPROVING A FOUR-YEAR EXTENSION OF THE 
AGREEMENT FOR FISCAL AGENCY SERVICES WITH U.S. BANK 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION. 

 

 

 

 

ADOPTED:  NOVEMBER 13, 2018 



STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE 

OLYMPIA, WASHINGTON 

RESOLUTION NO. 1219 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE STATE 
OF WASHINGTON APPROVING A FOUR-YEAR EXTENSION OF THE 
AGREEMENT FOR FISCAL AGENCY SERVICES WITH U.S. BANK 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION. 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 43.80.120, the State Finance Committee (the “Committee”) 
of the State of Washington (the “State”) and U.S. Bank National Association (the “Fiscal Agent”), 
entered into an Agreement for Fiscal Agency Services, dated February 1, 2015 (the “Original 
Agreement”), under which the Fiscal Agent agreed to perform Fiscal Agency and other services 
for the State and its subdivisions as described in the Fiscal Agency Agreement for an initial term 
of four years continuing through January 31, 2019 (the “Initial Term”); and  

 WHEREAS, Section 5.1 of the Original Agreement provides that the Initial Term of the 
Original Agreement may be extended at the option of the Committee for additional periods each 
not to exceed four years, for a maximum extension of eight years; and  

 WHEREAS, the Committee has determined pursuant to RCW 43.80.120 that it is in the 
best interests of the State and its subdivisions that the Original Agreement for Fiscal Agency 
Services dated February 1, 2015, on file with the Committee be extended for an additional period 
of four years, commencing on February 1, 2019, and ending on January 31, 2023; and 

 WHEREAS, the Fiscal Agent has accepted and agreed to the extension of the term of its 
services for an additional period of four years commencing on February 1, 2019, and ending on 
January 31, 2023. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
ACTING FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON, as follows:  

Section 1.  Approval and Authorization of Extension. The Committee approves and 
authorizes the extension of the Initial Term for an additional period of four years commencing on 
February 1, 2019, and ending on January 31, 2023.  The State Treasurer is authorized and directed 
to execute and deliver to the Fiscal Agent on behalf of the Committee, as agent for the State, any 
notice, agreement or other instrument reasonably necessary in connection therewith. 

Section 2.  Immediate Effect.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
adoption. 

 ADOPTED at an open meeting of the State Finance Committee after notice thereof was 
duly given as required by law, this 13th day of November, 2018. 



 

-2- 

 

STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 
 
 
By        

Duane A. Davidson 
State Treasurer and Chairman 

 
 
By        

Jay Inslee 
Governor and Member 

 
 
By        

Cyrus Habib 
Lieutenant Governor and Member 

ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Jason P. Richter, Deputy State Treasurer  
and Secretary 



 

 

 
CERTIFICATE 

 I, Jason P. Richter, the duly appointed, qualified and acting Secretary of the State Finance 
Committee of the State of Washington, certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 
Resolution No. 1219 of such Committee, adopted at an open public meeting thereof held on this 
13th day of November, 2018, after notice of such meeting was duly and regularly given as required 
by law, and that such resolution has been entered in the records of such Committee held on such 
date and remains in effect as of this date. 

 DATED:  November 13, 2018. 

        
Jason P. Richter, Secretary 
State Finance Committee 

 



AMENDMENT NO. 1 
To 

AGREEMENT FOR FISCAL AGENCY SERVICES 
DATED FEBRUARY 1, 2015 

 
 WHEREAS,  The State of Washington (the “State”) and U.S. Bank National Association 
as fiscal agent (the “Fiscal Agent”) are currently operating under an Agreement for Fiscal Agency 
Services (the “Agreement”) dated February 1, 2015; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the initial term of the Agreement is for four years unless otherwise terminated 
in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.  The initial term commenced on February 1, 2015, 
and will end on January 31, 2019 (the “Initial Term”) unless otherwise extended; and 
  
 WHEREAS, upon mutual agreement, as evidenced by a formally executed Amendment to 
the Agreement, the Initial Term may be renewed for additional periods not to exceed a total of four 
years, for a maximum length of eight years; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the State and the Fiscal Agent have mutually agreed to extend the Agreement 
for an additional period of four years 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, section 5.1.1 of the Agreement is amended to read in its entirety as 
follows: 
The initial term of this Agreement shall be for four years unless otherwise terminated in accordance 
with this Agreement.  The initial term shall commence on February 1, 2015, and end on January 
31, 2019. 

The first extension of this Agreement shall commence on February 1, 2019, and end on January 
31, 2023. 

  



This amendment shall be effective November 13, 2018. 

APPROVED  APPROVED 
State of Washington,  U.S. Bank National Association 
State Finance Committee   

 
    

Duane A. Davidson  Marne Lidster 
Chairman, State Finance Committee  Vice President  
Title  Title 

 

    

Date  Date 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
State Of Washington, 
Office of the Attorney General 

 
 

  

Robert J. Fallis 
Assistant Attorney General  
Title 

 

  

Date 

 
 
 

 
 



Office of the State Treasurer 
Legislative Building, P.O. Box 40200 • Olympia, Washington 98504-0200 • (360) 902-9000 

TTY CALL 711 • FAX (360) 902-9045 • Home Page http://www.tre.wa.gov 
 

 
State of Washington 
STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
November 13, 2018 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: The Honorable Duane A. Davidson 
 The Honorable Jay R. Inslee 
 The Honorable Cyrus Habib 
 
FROM: Jason P. Richter 
 Deputy State Treasurer 
 
RE: Market and Bond Sales Update  
 
Sale Update.  Since the last State Finance Committee meeting on July 9, 2018, the State has sold three 
series of bonds and one series of certificates of participation (COPs) as summarized in the table below 
(Table 1).  
 
Table 1 – Issuance since July 9, 2018 

 
 
Future Issuances.  OST anticipates that the State will issue approximately $500 million of Various Purpose 
General Obligation (G.O.) Bonds and $150 million of Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax G.O. Bonds in the 
beginning of 2019.  In addition, OST anticipates that the State will issue approximately $50 million of 
COPs and $240 million of Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds (1500 Jefferson Project / 63-20 structure) in 
the beginning of 2019. The actual size and timing of these issuances will be dependent upon cash-flow 
needs and market conditions.  
 
Market Update.  The current Bond Buyer 20-Bond Index (BBI) now stands at 4.33%, which is 153 bps 
higher than the recent historic low of 2.80% (on July 7, 2016) and around 100 bps higher than December 
2017.   The chart on the following page shows the BBI over the last three years (Chart 1). 
  

DUANE A. DAVIDSON, Chairman 
State Treasurer 

JAY R. INSLEE 
Governor 

CYRUS HABIB 
Lieutenant Governor 



2 
 

Chart 1 

  
 

Interest rates, especially short term rates, have increased from the lows reached during the summer of 
2016.  Short-term rates, reflecting increases to the Federal Reserve’s federal funds rate, have seen the most 
significant increase, as shown in Chart 2 below. 
 
Chart 2 

 

9/8/2016, 2.83%

11/3/2016, 3.27%

12/1/2016, 4.03%

12/7/2017, 3.29%

3/22/2018, 3.90%

4.33%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

4.5%

11
/1

2/
20

15

12
/1

2/
20

15

1/
12

/2
01

6

2/
12

/2
01

6
3/

12
/2

01
6

4/
12

/2
01

6

5/
12

/2
01

6

6/
12

/2
01

6

7/
12

/2
01

6

8/
12

/2
01

6

9/
12

/2
01

6

10
/1

2/
20

16

11
/1

2/
20

16

12
/1

2/
20

16

1/
12

/2
01

7

2/
12

/2
01

7
3/

12
/2

01
7

4/
12

/2
01

7

5/
12

/2
01

7

6/
12

/2
01

7

7/
12

/2
01

7

8/
12

/2
01

7

9/
12

/2
01

7

10
/1

2/
20

17

11
/1

2/
20

17

12
/1

2/
20

17

1/
12

/2
01

8

2/
12

/2
01

8
3/

12
/2

01
8

4/
12

/2
01

8

5/
12

/2
01

8

6/
12

/2
01

8

7/
12

/2
01

8

8/
12

/2
01

8

9/
12

/2
01

8

10
/1

2/
20

18

Ra
te

 (%
)

Weekly Bond Buyer 20-Bond Index (BBI)
General Obligation Bond Interest Rate Trends

(36 Months)

0.76% increase 
one month after 
election

0.44% increase 
two months prior 
to the election

0.61% increase
following tax 
reform

0%0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

1/
2/

20
07

4/
2/

20
07

7/
2/

20
07

10
/2

/2
00

7
1/

2/
20

08
4/

2/
20

08
7/

2/
20

08
10

/2
/2

00
8

1/
2/

20
09

4/
2/

20
09

7/
2/

20
09

10
/2

/2
00

9
1/

2/
20

10
4/

2/
20

10
7/

2/
20

10
10

/2
/2

01
0

1/
2/

20
11

4/
2/

20
11

7/
2/

20
11

10
/2

/2
01

1
1/

2/
20

12
4/

2/
20

12
7/

2/
20

12
10

/2
/2

01
2

1/
2/

20
13

4/
2/

20
13

7/
2/

20
13

10
/2

/2
01

3
1/

2/
20

14
4/

2/
20

14
7/

2/
20

14
10

/2
/2

01
4

1/
2/

20
15

4/
2/

20
15

7/
2/

20
15

10
/2

/2
01

5
1/

2/
20

16
4/

2/
20

16
7/

2/
20

16
10

/2
/2

01
6

1/
2/

20
17

4/
2/

20
17

7/
2/

20
17

10
/2

/2
01

7
1/

2/
20

18
4/

2/
20

18
7/

2/
20

18
10

/2
/2

01
8

Federal Funds Rate and 10-year Treasury Yield
with Quantitative Easing

Quantitative Easing Federal Funds Rate 10-Year TRE



3 
 

Chart 3 

 
The tax-exempt yield curve has increased considerably over the last year, with all rates at or close to their 
twelve month high (Charts 3 and 4). 
 
Chart 4 

  
 

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

Tax-exempt Yield Curve*
Current and High/Low Yield Curves

Range (Hi/Low MMD) (11/3/2017-11/2/2018) Current (11/2/2018) Month Ago (10/2/2018)

*"AAA" GO MMD (Municipal Market Data).

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

Tax-exempt Yield Curve*
Current Yield Curve and Yield Curves from Recent Sales

Current (11/2/2018)

Aug 2018 Sale (8/29/2018)

March 2018 Sale (3/6/2018)

Nov-2017 Refunding (11/30/2017)

Sept 2017 Sale (9/26/2017)

*"AAA" GO MMD (Municipal Market Data).


	1 SFC PDPC Agenda
	AGENDA
	STATE FINANCE COMMITTEE
	Olympia, Washington
	I. State Finance Committee
	II. Public Deposit Protection Commission



	2 SFC Minutes
	3 Reso 1217
	Section 1 .  Definitions.  Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined in this section shall, for all purposes of this resolution and of any resolution supplemental hereto, have the meanings specified; words importing the singular number ...
	Section 2 .  Authorization and Purpose of the Bonds.  For the purpose of providing funds to finance the Transportation Projects, and all costs incidental thereto, and for the payment of the expenses incurred in connection with the sale and issuance of...
	Section 3 .  Description of the Bonds.  The Bonds shall be designated “Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax General Obligation Bonds,” with such additional Series designation or other designations established by a Bond Sale Resolution; and shall be in an aggregate ...
	Section 4 .  Place, Manner and Medium of Payment.  The principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America.  Interest on the Bonds shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year...
	Section 5 .  Redemption; Purchase; Notice; Cancellation.
	(a) Optional and Mandatory Redemption.  The Bond Sale Resolution for a Series shall designate which maturities of the Series, if any, are subject to optional and mandatory redemption, and shall further provide for the time, manner and price at which s...
	(b) Partial Redemption.  Any Bond in the principal amount of greater than $5,000 may be partially redeemed in any integral multiple of $5,000.  If the Bonds are no longer held in book-entry only form, then in such event, upon surrender of such Bond to...
	(c) Purchase.  The State hereby reserves the right to purchase any or all of the Bonds offered for sale to the State at any time, at any price.
	(d) Effect of Optional Redemption/Purchase.  If the State redeems under the optional redemption provisions, purchases in the open market or defeases Term Bonds of a Series, the par amount of the Term Bonds so redeemed, purchased or defeased (irrespect...
	(e) Notice of Redemption.  While the Bonds are held in book-entry only form, notice of redemption shall be given only in accordance with the operational arrangements then in effect at DTC, and the Bond Registrar shall not be required to give any other...
	(f) Rescission of Optional Redemption Notice.  In the case of an optional redemption, the notice of redemption may state that the State retains the right to rescind the redemption notice and the related optional redemption of Bonds by giving a notice ...
	(g) Effect of Redemption.  If the State shall have set aside on the date fixed for redemption sufficient money for the payment of Bonds called for redemption on the date fixed for redemption, the Bonds so called shall cease to accrue interest after su...
	(h) Cancellation of Bonds.  All Bonds purchased or redeemed under this Section 5 shall be canceled.

	Section 6 .  Security for Bonds.
	(a) Pledge of Full Faith and Credit.  The Bonds are general obligations of the State.  The State, acting by and through the Committee, pledges its full faith and credit to the payment of the principal of and the interest on the Bonds and unconditional...
	(b) Pledge of Excise Tax on Motor Vehicle and Special Fuels.  The principal and interest on the Bonds shall be first payable in the manner provided by the Bond Act from the proceeds of the state excise taxes on motor vehicle and special fuels imposed ...
	(c) Additional Means for Payment of Bonds.  The Legislature may provide additional means for raising money for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Authorized Motor Vehicle Bonds, and the Bond Act shall not be deemed to provide an exclu...

	Section 7 .  Deposits Into and Payments from Bond Fund and Specific Covenants.
	(a) Repayment Procedure.  On or before June 30 of each year, the Committee shall certify to the State Treasurer the amount required to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds in the next fiscal year; provided, however, that the percentage of receip...
	(b) Accurate Records.  The State shall maintain accurate records showing all collections of motor vehicle and special fuel excise taxes levied pursuant to Chapters 82.36 and 82.38 RCW and all payments made into and out of the Bond Fund, and such recor...
	(c) Transfers of Funds.  On or before the date such payments are due from time to time, the State Treasurer shall pay to the Bond Registrar, from money in the Bond Fund, sums sufficient to pay the principal of and interest coming due on Bonds then out...

	Section 8 .  Enforcement of Rights.  The Registered Owner of each Bond, or a trustee for the Registered Owners of any of the Bonds, may by mandamus or other appropriate proceeding require the transfer and payment of money as directed in the Bond Act a...
	Section 9 .  Form of Bonds.  The Bonds shall be prepared in a form consistent with the provisions of this resolution, the applicable Bond Sale Resolution and state law.
	Section 10 .  Execution of Bonds.  The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the State by the facsimile or manual signatures of the Governor and the State Treasurer.  A facsimile of the official seal of the State shall be imprinted or otherwise reprodu...
	Section 11 .  Authentication and Delivery of Bonds by Bond Registrar.  The Bond Registrar is authorized and directed, on behalf of the State, to authenticate and deliver the Bonds initially issued or transferred or exchanged in accordance with the pro...
	Section 12 .  Bond Registrar; Registration of Bonds.
	(a) Registration Covenant.  The Bonds shall be issued only in registered form as to both principal and interest and shall be recorded on the Bond Register.  The State covenants that, until all Bonds have been surrendered and canceled, it will maintain...
	(b) Bond Registrar.  The Bond Registrar shall keep, or cause to be kept, the Bond Register at its principal corporate trust office, which shall be open to inspection by the State at all times during regular business hours.  The Bond Register shall con...
	(c) Registered Ownership.  The State and the Bond Registrar, each in its discretion, may deem and treat the Registered Owner of each Bond as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes (except as provided in Section 20 of this resolution), and neither...
	(d) DTC Acceptance/Letter of Representations.  To induce DTC to accept each Series of Bonds as eligible for deposit at DTC, the State has executed and delivered to DTC the Letter of Representations.
	(e) Use of Depository.
	(f) Registration of Transfer of Ownership or Exchange; Change in Denominations.  The transfer of any Bond may be registered and Bonds may be exchanged, but no transfer of any Bond shall be valid unless such Bond is surrendered to the Bond Registrar, w...

	Section 13 .  Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds.  If any Bond becomes mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Bond Registrar shall, upon request of the State, authenticate and deliver a new Bond, as appropriate, of the same Series, date, in...
	Section 14 .  Defeasance.  If money and/or “Government Obligations” (as defined in chapter 39.53 RCW, as now in existence or hereafter amended) maturing at such time(s) and bearing such interest to be earned thereon (without any reinvestment thereof) ...
	Section 15 .  Sale of the Bonds.
	(a) Methods of Sale of Bonds.  The Deputy State Treasurer is hereby authorized to determine, for each Series of Bonds, whether such Bonds will be sold competitively at public sale or whether such Series will be sold by means of a negotiated sale to on...
	(b) Adoption of Bond Sale Resolutions.  The State Treasurer is authorized, on behalf of the Committee, to adopt a Bond Sale Resolution to approve the sale of a Series of the Bonds within the aggregate total amount of Bonds authorized by this resolutio...
	(c) Elections to Treat Bonds as Tax-Advantaged Bonds.  If the State Treasurer determines that it is beneficial to the State for a Series of Bonds to be sold and issued as Tax-Advantaged Bonds, the Bond Sale Resolution shall include those elections and...

	Section 16 .  Official Statement.  To allow the initial Underwriters of the Bonds of each Series to comply with Section (b)(1) of the Rule, the Committee hereby authorizes the State Treasurer or Deputy State Treasurer to execute a certificate “deeming...
	Section 17 .  Delivery of Bonds.  The proper State officials are authorized and directed to execute all documents and to do everything necessary, without unreasonable delay after each Bond Sale Resolution is adopted, for (a) the preparation and delive...
	Section 18 .  Disposition of Bond Proceeds.  The proceeds from the sale of each Series of Bonds, together with all other money which the Committee may direct the State Treasurer to deposit therein, shall be deposited to the credit of the applicable Pr...
	Section 19 .  Tax Covenants.  The Committee on behalf of the State covenants that the State will not take or permit to be taken on its behalf any action that would adversely affect the exemption from federal income taxation of the interest on the Tax-...
	Section 20 .  Undertaking to Provide Ongoing Disclosure.
	(a) Contract/Undertaking.  This section constitutes the State’s written undertaking for the benefit of the owners of each Series of the Bonds in order to assist the Underwriters in complying with Section (b)(5) of the Rule.
	(b) Financial Statements/Operating Data.
	(i) Annual Disclosure Report.  The State covenants and agrees that not later than seven months after the end of each fiscal year (the “Submission Date”), the State shall provide or cause to be provided, either directly or through a designated agent, t...
	(ii) Content of Annual Disclosure Reports.  The State’s Annual Disclosure Report shall contain or include by reference the following:

	(c) Listed Events.  The State agrees to provide or cause to be provided, in a timely manner not in excess of ten business days after the occurrence of the event, to the MSRB notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the r...
	(d) Notice Upon Failure to Provide Financial Data.  The State agrees to provide or cause to be provided, in a timely manner, to the MSRB, notice of its failure to provide the annual financial information described in subsection (b) above on or prior t...
	(e) Termination/Modification.  The State’s obligations to provide annual financial information and notices of listed events with respect to each Series of Bonds shall terminate upon the legal defeasance (if notice of such defeasance is given as provid...
	(f) Owner’s Remedies Under this Section.  The right of the Registered Owners or any beneficial owner to enforce the provisions of this section shall be limited to a right to obtain specific enforcement of the State’s obligations hereunder, and any fai...
	(g) Additional Information.  Nothing in this section shall be deemed to prevent the State from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this section or any other means of communication, or including any other ...

	Section 21 .  Alternate Use of Bond Proceeds.  Nothing in this resolution or the Bonds shall prevent the State from properly authorizing that the Bond proceeds may be expended for purposes other than provided in Section 2 of this resolution.
	Section 22 .  Contract; Severability.  The covenants contained in this resolution and in the Series of Bonds issued hereunder shall constitute a contract between the State and the Registered Owner of each Bond.  If any one or more of the covenants or ...
	Section 23 .  Filing of Resolution.  The Deputy State Treasurer is directed to file with the State Treasurer, pursuant to RCW 39.42.100, a certified copy of this resolution immediately upon its adoption.
	Section 24 .  Ratification.  All actions heretofore taken by officers or staff of the Committee consistent with the terms of this resolution are ratified, approved and confirmed.
	Section 25 .  Immediate Effect.   This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

	4 Reso 1218
	5 Reso 1219
	M E M O R A N D U M

	6 SFC Briefing Memo
	M E M O R A N D U M




